BYLAWS OF THE JUVENILE LAW SECTION OF THE COLORADO BAR ASSOCIATION

ARTICLE I

Name and Mission Statement

Section 1. This section shall be known as the Juvenile Law Section ("JLS" or "Section") of the Colorado Bar Association ("CBA").

Section 2. The purpose of the JLS shall be to promote the objectives of the Colorado Bar Association within the area of juvenile law. The JLS shall foster the continuing development of juvenile law and juvenile law lawyers through: education of juvenile law lawyers at all levels of experience; dissemination of information regarding issues affecting children to judges as well as other professionals working with children in the Colorado judicial system; promotion and implementation of the highest standards of excellence in the practice of juvenile law; analysis, constructive input, and where appropriate sponsorship of legislation affecting Colorado's children and/or juvenile law, in accordance with CBA guidelines; promoting a dialogue and sharing of resources between juvenile law lawyers and other professionals working with children in the Colorado judicial system.

ARTICLE II

Membership and Dues

Section 1. Any member of the Colorado Bar Association may become a member of the JLS upon payment of the annual Section dues. Such dues shall be due and payable, in advance, on the first day of July of each year. Any member of the JLS who has not paid the annual dues on or before September 1 in any year shall thereupon cease to be a member of the Section. Membership in the JLS is also open to all persons who are eligible to be associate or patron members of the Colorado Bar Association. Associate or patron membership shall be open to, but not limited to, the following: social workers; representatives of child placement agencies; juvenile probation officers; and medical or mental health professionals in child welfare fields. Associate or patron members may not hold office or vote.

Section 2. The Executive Council of the JLS shall have the power to fix the amount of annual dues paid by members of the Section and to establish any classification it deems appropriate for such purposes. The Executive Council shall fix the amount of the dues and establish any classifications on or before April 1 of each year and if it fails to do so, scheduled dues and classifications of the preceding year shall remain in full force and effect.

ARTICLE III Officers

Section 1. The officers of the JLS shall be a Chair, the Immediate Past Chair, a Vice-Chair/Treasurer, and a Secretary. All officers shall be members of the Colorado Bar Association and of the JLS.

Section 2. There shall be an Executive Council which shall consist of the Chair, Vice-Chair/Treasurer, Secretary, Immediate Past Chair, and no fewer than five nor more than eight Executive Council Members at-large. The Executive Council shall consist of no fewer than nine or more than twelve members, including the officer and at large positions. Less than twelve members shall create a presumptive vacancy.

Section 3. Beginning in February of each election cycle, there shall be a call to the section members for nominations for the Secretary and Vice Chair/Treasurer positions. Elections will then be held pursuant to Article IV. The elected Secretary will serve for a term of one year, beginning July 1 of that year and ending June 30. The elected Vice-Chair/Treasurer will serve for a term of one year, beginning July 1 of that year and ending June 30.

Section 4. On July 1 of each year, the-then serving Vice-Chair/Treasurer will move into the Chair position, and serve as Chair for a term of one year, beginning July 1 of that year and ending June 30. On July 1 of each year, the-then serving Chair will move into the Past Chair position, and serve as Past Chair for a term of one year, beginning July 1 of that year and ending June 30. Should the-then serving Vice-Chair/Treasurer not desire to serve as Chair, then the Chair position shall be included in the call for nominations and elections shall be held pursuant to Article IV.

Section 5. No Officer shall serve more than three consecutive full terms in the same office unless necessary to prevent a vacancy.

Section 6. Upon the resignation or death of the Chair, the Vice-Chair/Treasurer shall elect: (1) to perform the duties of the Chair for the remainder to the Chair's term; or (2) to fill the office by vote of the Executive Council within forty-five days of the vacancy. In the event of a vacancy of the office of Vice-Chair/Treasurer, the Executive Council shall fill the office by vote of the Executive Council within forty-five days of the vacancy.

Section 7. Beginning in February of each election cycle, there shall be a call for at-large Executive Council Member nominations to the Section members. Any Section member in good standing can serve as an Executive Council Members at-large or Officer. Executive Council Members at-large shall serve for a two-year term except as otherwise provided herein. New members of the Council shall be nominated and elected in the manner provided in Article IV. New at-large members will be elected to the Executive Council starting each July 1st to fill the appropriate vacancies. No at-large Council member may serve more than two consecutive full (2-year) terms as Executive Council Members at-large unless necessary to prevent a vacancy.

Section 8. Any member of the Executive Council may volunteer to serve as the Representative to the CBA Board of Governors for a two-year term. If more than one person volunteers, the Executive Council will select the Representative.

ARTICLE IV

Nominations and Elections

Section A. Nominations. The Immediate Past Chair shall have the duty of conducting the election according to these Bylaws. No later than February 15 of each year, a call for nominations will be sent to all Section members soliciting nominations for Secretary, Vice-Chair/Treasurer, and Executive Council Members at-large. No later than March 15th of that year, the Chair shall submit the names of those nominated by the Section to the Executive Council. The Immediate Past Chair shall be sensitive to a diverse composition of the Executive Counsel so that all members may recognize that their interests are being represented by the Counsel.

Section B. Elections. Ballots listing the nominated candidates will be sent to the Section members no later than April 15th. Section members will have until May 10th to complete and return their ballots. The results will be announced by the Chair no later than May 31st. Officer and Executive Council members' terms start on July 1. Balloting shall occur by email or other electronic or another method selected by the Executive Counsel.

ARTICLE V

Duties of Officers

Section 1. CHAIR: The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the JLS and of the Executive Council. The Chair shall appoint committees, committee leads and members, and supervise the activities of the committees. The Chair shall perform such other duties and acts as usually pertain to this office.

Section 2. VICE-CHAIR/ TREASURER: The Vice-Chair shall assist the Chair in the running of the JLS and overseeing the committees. The scope of the responsibility of the Vice-Chair shall be determined by the Chair. During the disability of the Chair, the Chair-elect shall perform the duties of the Chair. This position is also responsible for creating an annual budget, ensuring the Section operates within its budget, and tracking how the Section spends its money on a monthly and annual basis.

Section 3. SECRETARY: This position is responsible for taking, and keeping, minutes at all meetings. Secretaries may be tasked by the Chair to gather materials for the Council meetings

Section 4. IMMEDIATE PAST CHAIR: The Immediate Past Chair shall assist the other officers in the running of the JLS. The scope of the responsibility of the Immediate Past Chair shall be determined by the Chair and may include assisting with the duties of any Executive Council member or committee..

ARTICLE VI

Committees

Section 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS: The JLS shall have five standing committees, as described in Sections 2 through 6 of this Article and such ad hoc committees (see Section 7 of this Article) as the Chair shall assemble. All heads of the committees will serve at the pleasure of the Chair.

Section 2. LEGISLATIVE: The Legislative Committee shall be responsible for reviewing all bills before the Colorado Legislature which have primary impact on the lives of children of the state of Colorado or the practice of juvenile law. The Legislative Committee shall report to the Executive Council on the status of all such bills and shall coordinate constructive criticism or comment on such bills by the members of the Council.

The head of the Legislative Committee shall serve as the Section's representative on the CBA Legislative Policy Committee. Based upon the input and direction of the Section and its officers, the Legislative Committee may advocate that the CBA sponsor, support or oppose legislation according to the guidelines set forth by the Colorado Bar Association.

Section 3. MEMBERSHIP: The Membership Committee shall be responsible for promoting membership in the Section, not only to members of the Colorado Bar Association, but also to those persons from other disciplines actively involved with children in the Colorado judicial system.

Section 4. NEWSLETTER: The Newsletter Committee shall be responsible for preparation of a newsletter to be distributed to the members of the JLS on no less than a quarterly basis. The Newsletter Committee shall update the membership on the work of each of the committees and contain other information consistent with the purposes stated in Article I, Section 2.

Section 5. PROGRAM: The Program Committee shall be responsible for providing continuing legal education for the members of the JLS, to support the purposes stated in Article I, Section 2. Topics shall include programs for both experienced and less experienced lawyers practicing in the juvenile law field and shall be consistent with the purposes in Article I, Section 2.

Section 6. COMMUNICATIONS AND WEBSITE MANAGEMENT: The Communications and Website Management Committee shall be responsible for Communications with members and for the design and maintenance of the JLS website. It shall also be responsible for posting Minutes, useful links and other information, subject to the oversight of the Executive Council.

Section 7. AD HOC: At the discretion of the Chair, ad hoc Committee(s) may be assembled. The purpose and duties of any such committee shall be set forth by the Chair and approved by the Executive Council. The heads of ad hoc committees shall not be members of the Executive Council, unless specifically invited by the Council to serve in that capacity.

ARTICLE VII

Duties and Powers of the Executive Council

Section 1. The Executive Council shall have general supervision and control of the affairs of the Section, subject to the provisions of the Bylaws of the CBA and the Bylaws of the JLS. It shall authorize all commitments for contracts which shall entail a payment of money and shall authorize the expenditure of monies appropriated for use or benefit of the Section. It shall not, however, authorize commitments or contracts which shall require the payment of more money during any fiscal year than an amount which shall have been previously appropriated to the Committee for such fiscal year.

Section 2. Subject to these Bylaws and the Bylaws of the CBA, the Executive Council may authorize the Chair to appoint one or more committees from among the Section's members to perform such duties and exercise such powers as the Executive Council may direct.

Section 3. The Executive Council may fill any Executive Council Member at-large vacancy, and any vacancy in the offices of Chair, Vice-Chair/Treasurer, and/or Secretary, by majority vote of the Executive Council. Any person selected by the Executive Council to fill an Executive Council at-large member or Officer vacancy shall serve the balance of the unexpired term of that position. Anyone filling the unexpired term of an Executive Council at-large member or Officer shall not be prohibited from serving one consecutive full term in that same position.

Section 4. Five Executive Council members shall constitute a quorum of the Executive Council. All binding action of the Executive Council shall be by a simple majority vote of the Executive Council members voting. A vote of the Executive Council members may be taken during any Executive Council or Annual Section meeting, and a vote of the Executive Council may also be taken via e-mail communications on any matter that may arise between meetings. A "meeting," for purposes of this Article, shall include meetings during which Executive Council members are physically present or are present via telephone conference or e-mail communications. Nothing in these Bylaws shall prevent the Executive Council from discussing or voting on section business solely via teleconference or e-mail communications.

Section 5. The Executive Council shall have the power to fix the amount of annual dues paid by members of the JLS and to establish any classification it deems appropriate for such purposes. The Executive Council shall fix the amount of the dues and establish any classifications on or before April 1 of each year and if it fails to do so, scheduled dues and classifications of the preceding year shall remain in full force and effect.

ARTICLE VIII

Meetings

Section 1. Diversity and Inclusivity. The section leadership, section membership committee, nominating process, and all other section activity shall consider diversity, ethnicity, gender, sexual orientation, and other diversity criteria to engage and represent all individuals and encourage diverse membership.

Section 2. On an annual basis, the Executive Council shall set an Executive Council meeting schedule to commence in July when the new officers assume their official duties. The program and order of business shall be set forth by the Chair or the Chair's designee.

Section 3. Special meetings of the Section may be called by the Chair upon approval of one-third of the Executive Council, at such time and place and upon such reasonable notice as the Executive Council may determine.

Section 4. The members of the JLS present at any Section meeting shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of Section business at that meeting.

ARTICLE IX

Miscellaneous Provisions

Section 1. The fiscal year of the JLS shall be the same as that of the Colorado Bar Association.

Section 2. All bills incurred by the Section, before being forwarded to the Treasurer of the Colorado Bar Association for payment, shall be approved by an Officer of the Section.

Section 3. No salary or compensation shall be paid to any officer, Executive Council member, or member of the Section.

ARTICLE X

Amendments

These Bylaws may be amended at any meeting of the Section by a majority vote of the members present and voting at that meeting. Additionally, at the discretion of the Executive Council, a section vote may be conducted by ballot by e-mail, by fax, other electronic method, or through the United States Postal Service. Proposed Bylaw amendments shall be sent to members of the Section no less than two weeks prior to any voting deadline concerning proposed Bylaw amendments.

ARTICLE XI

Diversity

The Section is committed to encouraging and making diversity, equity, and inclusion integral aspects of all membership services it delivers. The diversity found within the legal profession offers the ability for The Section to recruit previously undiscovered and talented individuals who should have the equal chance to participate in our organization as Executive Council members and speakers at events. The Section promotes diversity, equity, and inclusion for their intrinsic value. When applied together, diversity, equity, and inclusion create meaningful representation and involvement of persons with varied backgrounds, experiences, identities, and abilities in every aspect of The Section, each with the opportunity to make robust contributions to the organization without discriminatory barriers. The Section recognizes that diversity is an evolving and often fluid concept, which sometimes is difficult to entirely define. Promotion of the concept of diversity in all its forms—including but not limited to age, gender, religion, race, culture,

national origin, ethnicity, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, veteran status, socioeconomic status, expertise, firm size and geographic location — furthers The Section's mission to support attorneys and employment professionals. This commitment to diversity shall be considered in decisions regarding Executive Council membership and identification of speakers for Section events.

CERTIFICATE

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bylaws con	sisting of pages, incl	luding this page,
constitute the Bylaws of the Construction Sec	tion of the Colorado Bar	Association, as adopted
by the then current Executive Council on the	December	, 2020.